From: Robeson Hannan, Lynn
To: Butler, Patrick
Cc: Beall, Mark; Behanna, Sara; Andrea LeWinter; Harris, Patricia A.; Penn, Joshua
Subject: RE: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa
Date: Friday, April 5, 2024 1:08:06 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png

Thank you. | will review all responses.

Lynn Robeson Hannan

Director

Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearings
100 Maryland Avenue, Room 200

Rockville, MD 20850

(240) 777-6660

From: Butler, Patrick <patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org>

Sent: Friday, April 5, 2024 1:06 PM

To: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>

Cc: Beall, Mark <mark.beall@montgomeryplanning.org>; Behanna, Sara
<Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>; Andrea LeWinter <alewinter@taylorlegal.com>; Harris,
Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>; Penn, Joshua <joshua.penn@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: RE: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hello Director Robeson,

The Application was accepted by the Board of Appeals and forwarded on to Staff as an accepted Special
Exception Major Modification and Staff agreed with the Board of Appeals and Hearing Examiner this was a
Special Exception Major Modification. Furthermore, Section 59.7.7.1.B.3(c ) states a Special Exception
approved under the code in effect on or before October 29, 2014, may be expanded under the applicable
standards and procedures in effect on October 29, 2014, without regard to the limitations of this Section.

The Applicant team has previously replied to your inquiry (See Attachment) and Planning Staff concurs
with their response on the items that were addressed. The following are the two items Planning Staff were
requested to clarify:

(b) The reference to 5,000 square feet was a typo. It should read 5,919 square feet.

(c) Staff feels the proposed signage is similar in size to the existing signage onsite as well as the
signage that exists for other businesses along Route 198.

Please let us know if you have additional questions or concerns.

Exhibit 24
S-847-B
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Thank you,

Patrick Butler
Chief, Upcounty Planning Division
Montgomery County Planning Department

" 2425 Reedie Drive, 13th Floor, Wheaton, MD 20902

patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org
0: 301-495-4561 c: 240-772-6736
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WE'VE MOVED!

THE NEW PARK AND PLANNING HEADQUARTERS IS NOW LOCATED AT
2425 REEDIE DRIVE, WHEATON, MD 20902

From: Butler, Patrick

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:52 PM

To: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>
Cc: Beall, Mark <Mark.Beall@montgomeryplanning.org>; Behanna, Sara

<Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>; Andrea LeWinter <alewinter@taylorlegal.com>; Harris,
Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>; Penn, Joshua <Joshua.Penn@montgomeryplanning.org>

Subject: RE: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa
Hello Director Robeson,

We have received your request, and we are working on a response. We should have that to you by this
Friday at close of business.

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

From: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 7:38 AM

To: Harris, Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>

Cc: Beall, Mark <Mark.Beall@montgomeryplanning.org>; Butler, Patrick
<patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org>; Behanna, Sara <Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>;

Andrea LeWinter <alewinter@taylorlegal.com>
Subject: Re: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa
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From: Butler, Patrick
To: Robeson Hannan, Lynn
Cc: Beall, Mark; Behanna, Sara; Andrea LeWinter; Harris, Patricia A.; Penn, Joshua
Subject: RE: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:51:45 PM
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

' 2425 Reedie Drive, 13th Floor, Wheaton, MD 20902
patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org

0:301-495-4561 c: 240-772-6736
) -
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
Andrea LeWinter <alewinter @taylorlegal.com>

Subject: Re: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Exercise caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or
responding.

Staff acts as our objective experts, so we would look to Staff for a response, although you may certainly
respond as well.

we would also appreciate Staff’s rationale for applying the standards of the 2004 CRT Zone.

Mark/Patrick, is there a problem getting a response? Do you need more time?

Exhibit 24
S-847-B
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From: Harris, Patricia A.

To: Robeson Hannan, Lynn

Cc: Beall, Mark; Butler, Patrick; Behanna, Sara; Andrea LeWinter
Subject: RE: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:28:11 PM

Attachments: Responses to ZHE"s 4 2 24 email(5814864.1).docx

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Ms. Robeson,
Attached please find the Applicant’s responses to your questions. Thank you.
Pat

Patricia A. Harris, Attorney

Lerch, Early & Brewer, Chtd.

7600 Wisconsin Ave | Suite 700 | Bethesda, MD 20814
T301-841-3832 | F301-347-3756 | Main 301-986-1300
paharris@lerchearly.com | Bio

Attention: This message is sent from a law firm and may contain information that is privileged or confidential. If you received this
communication in error, please notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete this message and any attachments. Thank you.

www.lerchearly.com

From: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 7:38 AM

To: Harris, Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>

Cc: Beall, Mark <mark.beall@montgomeryplanning.org>; Butler, Patrick
<patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org>; Behanna, Sara
<Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>; Andrea LeWinter <alewinter@taylorlegal.com>
Subject: Re: S-847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

Staff acts as our objective experts, so we would look to Staff for a response, although you may
certainly respond as well.

we would also appreciate Staff’s rationale for applying the standards of the 2004 CRT Zone.
Mark/Patrick, is there a problem getting a response? Do you need more time?
Just let me know.

Get Outlook for i0OS

From: Harris, Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 9:07 PM

To: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>
Cc: Beall, Mark <mark.beall@montgomeryplanning.org>; Butler, Patrick
<patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org>; Behanna, Sara
<Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>
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April 3, 2024 • Page 4

Special Exception S-847-B

Supplementary Information Responding to Zoning Hearing Examiner’s April 2, 2024 Inquiries*





1.	Comments applicable regardless of 2004 or 2014 Zoning Ordinance:



a. The Staff Report states that 50 parking spaces are provided, but I don’t see 50 parking spaces on the plan.   By my count, there are a little over 40, but I may have missed some.  Please clarify.



The Site Plan (“SP”) Cover Sheet indicates that 50 spaces are provided and SP Sheet 3 provides for the location of these spaces.  The 50 total parking spaces include the nine potential Electric Vehicle parking spaces along the eastern Property line. 



b. The Staff Report (p. 9) states that the proposed store will be a “maximum of 5,000” square feet while the Applicant’s Land Use Report states that it will be 5,919 square feet.  Which is it?



SP Cover Sheet and SP Sheet 3 indicate that the store will be 5,919 square feet and this is the accurate square footage. 



c. Provide the dimensions, design and lighting of the freestanding sign.  Staff, based on this description, provide your analysis of whether the sign is compatible with the surrounding area?



Sheet 2 of the Architectural Plans includes the specifications for the illuminated pylon signs.  These two free standing signs are replacing the two existing free standing signs along Route 198 and Route 29.  Each sign is 10’2” wide and 26’ tall.  The signs will be internally lit.  



d. To make the required findings we need to make, we need to know why the application meets the standards, not just a statement that it does meet the standards.  Rather than “Provided and see landscape plan”, would you kindly state why and where the specific requirements are met on the plan.  This would apply to the conclusions on pp. 18-20.



59-C-15.635



(a) Property Line Adjacent to a right-of-way -- SP Sheet 7 shows along Route 198: 15’ wide landscape strip; 3 foot high hedge; and street trees every 30’.  SP Sheet 7 shows along Route 29:  landscape strip with varying width of 36’; 3 foot high hedge; and trees every 30’.  The Application meets the requirements.



(b)	Property line adjacent to residential zone – SP sheet 7 provides for a forest conservation easement (FCE) area with a variable width of  50’ to 70’ with trees planted on center.  Given the width of the FCE and the additional tree plantings that are proposed, the Staff Report concluded that this satisfies the intent of this provision.  If this is not deemed acceptable, the Applicant will provide for the planting of evergreen trees along the southern Property line.  

(c)  	Not applicable (NA)

(d) 	Internal pervious area – SP Cover Sheet indicates that 10% or 2,914 square feet is required and the Applicant is providing 12% or 3,632 square feet.  This requirement is satisfied.

(e) 	Tree canopy – SP Cover Sheet indicates that 30% or 8,824 square feet is required and the Applicant is providing 34% or 10,079 square feet.  This requirement is satisfied. 

(f) 	Lighting –  The submitted photometric plan shows 0.0 footcandles at the residential property line and thus this requirement is satisfied.  



Note:  The Staff Report, pages 18-22 explains how the Application meets the landscaping requirements of Section E 2.7 and therefore we have not reiterated this information.  Section E 2.83 pertains to Special Exceptions within residential zones and is not relevant.



e. Transportation (p. 26):  Isn’t this the Burtonsville Policy Area (that’s what I remember from the LMA) rather than the Cloverly Policy area.  Please confirm.



Correct.  The Property is located within the Burtonsville Policy Area.  The reference to the Clovery Policy Area was erroneous.  



f. There should be the following conditions:



i. maximum number of employees associated with the use. 



ii. maximum number of staff on-site at any one time, including shift hours and days of week.



The Applicant’s Land Use Report provided the following: 



 	The Automobile Filling Station will continue to operate 24 hours a day, seven days a week in essentially the same manner as the existing 7-Eleven gas station and convenience store. Additional operational aspects of the Modification include the following:	 


· Maximum number of employees at one time: 12 during morning and lunch peak hours; as few as 3 during overnight shift.

· Fuel deliveries:  on average 1 to 2 per day; delivery takes approximately 30 minutes; station offers three types of fuel (diesel, high-test and regular).

· C-Store deliveries:  provisioning and dairy deliveries, each every other day typically coordinated to occur on alternative days; fresh channel delivery every day; specific brand truck deliveries (e.g. sodas, potato chips) occur from trucks that park in standard parking spaces, daily.

· Trash removal:  twice per week.

· Landscaping/upkeep of Property: landscape contract with once a week maintenance; grass areas will be watered with sprinklers; litter pick-up and trash cans emptied once every shift.



Please let the Applicant know if additional information is needed.  Note:  The Applicant requests a change in the fuel deliveries (second bullet) to allow for up to three deliveries a day, given the three grades of fuel to be provided. 



g. Describe more fully the operations of this use Including frequency and types of deliveries to site and days/hours when deliveries are expected to occur and frequency of trash removal services.



See response above. 



h. Provide information on the proposed number of bicycle parking spaces. 



SP Cover Sheet provides that four spaces are required and four will be provided.  Pursuant to the requirement, two spaces will be provided inside the store at the rear of the building and two spaces outside.  The detail for the external bike rack is provided on SP Sheet 5.  The SP plans do not show the location of the external bike rack but it is anticipated to be located adjacent to the northwest corner of the building.  The Applicant intends to show this on the forthcoming Preliminary Plan.



i. Has the Stormwater Management Concept Plan been approved by DPS.



The Stormwater Management Concept Plan, SWM No. 290015, was approved on February 2, 2024.



Note:  The Applicant intends to proceed under the 2004 Zoning Ordinance and thus the questions related to the CRTF Zone have been eliminated. 



3. 	If you proceed under the 2004 Zoning Ordinance:



a. Section 59-G-1.24 requires a showing of neighborhood need.  I don’t see anything on this either in the Staff Report or the Applicant’s Land Use Report to support this standard.  



The Application is replacing an existing gas station with a convenience store with a new gas station and convenience store and adding two additional fueling pumps.  The existence of the current gas station that conducts a healthy business provides evidence of need.  Nonetheless, the Applicant will provide additional information to support this finding. 



b. Landscaping under Section 59-E:  2.83 and 2.91 only apply to residentially zoned property, I believe.



Section 2.83 pertains to special exceptions located within a residential zone and does not apply.  Section 2.91 pertains to special exceptions adjacent to residentially zoned land (and institutionally zoned land) and thus does apply and is addressed above. 



c. Criteria in Section 59-G-1.23:  There are more than 1.23(h) listed in the Staff Report (pp. 21-22).  Wouldn’t at a minimum 59-G-1.23(f) and (g) apply?  Are these addressed elsewhere?  If not, please state affirmatively that the others don’t apply so we know that we have covered them.



(a)	Development Standards - Acknowledged; See SP Cover Sheet that provides evidence that the application meets the relevant development standards.

(b)	Parking Requirements - Acknowledged; See SP Cover Sheet and plans for parking compliance and the additional explanations of compliance provided above. 

(c) 	Minimum frontage - NA

(d)	Forest Conservation - The Planning Board approved the preliminary Forest Conservation Plan F-20240210 on February 29, 2024.

(e)	Water Quality Plan – NA.  The Property is not subject to a water quality plan and is not located within a special protection area. 

(f)	Signs – Acknowledged.   The submitted Architectural Plans show all of the proposed signs.  As previously noted, the two existing freestanding signs will be replaced with two new freestanding signs.   The Applicant will obtain the necessary sign permits for the signage.

[bookmark: _GoBack](g)	Building compatibility in residential zones – An FCE with a variable width of 50’ to 70’ extends along the southern boundary of the Property and provides a buffer to the adjacent residential property.   The closest house is 450 feet from the structure and there is 650 feet between the structure and the next closest homes.  The Architectural Plans show that that the store design is a modern, sleek design, representing a significant upgrade from the existing structure on the Property. The gas pumps are located in front of the structure, thus providing an additional buffer.  The zoning of the Property allows a 1.0 FAR and the proposed density is only .04 FAR.  The proposed Special Exception is proposing a continuation of the existing use and as far as the Applicant is aware, there have been no complaints from adjacent property owners with respect to the operation of the Property.  All of these factors contribute to the structures compatibility with the adjacent residential zone.  The Application satisfies the requirements of this section. 

(h)	Lighting.   As noted, the photometric plan shows that the light levels at the shared Property line to the south are 0.0.    The Applicant meets the requirement of this section. 





*ZHE’s inquiries are in italics
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

Cc: Andrea LeWinter; Behanna, Sara; Beall, Mark
Subject: RE: SE 847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 10:48:31 AM
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Correct CRTF.

Patricia A. Harris, Attorney

Lerch, Early & Brewer, Chtd.

7600 Wisconsin Ave | Suite 700 | Bethesda, MD 20814
T301-841-3832 | F 301-347-3756 | Main 301-986-1300
paharris@lerchearly.com| Bio

Attention: This message is sent from a law firm and may contain information that is privileged or confidential. If you received this communication
in error, please notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete this message and any attachments. Thank you.
www.lerchearly.com

From: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 10:39 AM

To: Harris, Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>

Cc: Andrea LeWinter <alewinter@taylorlegal.com>; Behanna, Sara
<Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>; Beall, Mark <mark.beall@montgomeryplanning.org>;
Harris, Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>

Subject: RE: SE 847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

I will review your response as soon as possible.

A point of clarification, however, is that the property is now zoned CRTF, not CRT, by virtue of an
LMA.

Lynn Robeson Hannan

Director

Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearings
100 Maryland Avenue, Room 200

Rockville, MD 20850

(240) 777-6660

From: Harris, Patricia A. <paharris@lerchearly.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 9:31 AM

To: Robeson Hannan, Lynn <Lynn.RobesonHannan@montgomerycountymd.gov>

Cc: Beall, Mark <mark.beall@montgomeryplanning.org>; Butler, Patrick
<patrick.butler@montgomeryplanning.org>; Andrea LeWinter <alewinter@taylorlegal.com>; Behanna,

Sara <Sara.Behanna@montgomerycountymd.gov>; Vaias, Emily <Emily.Vaias@mncppc.org>
Subject: RE: SE 847-B, Burtonsville Wawa
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[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Ms. Robeson,

We have reviewed your email below and believe that the Special Exception may be modified under the
2004 Zoning Ordinance (Z0) in accordance with the CRT provisions as we have proposed. However, if you
do not agree, we believe that consistent with your explanation in your email below, the Special Exception
may be modified under the 2004 ZO in accordance with the CRN provisions. We note that there is no
difference in the 2004 ZO’s standards and procedures for the CRT and CRN as it relates to this Special
Exception.

The Zoning History of the Property is as follows:

1967 -2012 — The Property was zoned C-2 and was subject to the SE originally approved in 1967.

2012 —The Property was rezoned CRN in accordance with the recommendations of the 2012 Burtonsville
Master Plan and the subsequent Sectional Map Amendment.

2014 — The County adopted the new Zoning Ordinance. The County-wide District Map Amendment G-956,
did not change the zoning of the Property

2019 — The Property was rezoned from CRN to CRT by LMA H-134.

Z0 Section 7.7.1.B.3.c. provides as follows: “Without regard to the limitations of this section, a special
exception approved under the code in effect on or before October 29, 2014 may be expanded under the
applicable standards and procedures of the code in effect on October 29, 2014.”

The SE was approved under the code in effect before October 29, 2014. Therefore it may be expanded
under the standards and procedures of the code in effect on October 29, 2014 (i.e. the 2004 ZO). Our
logic in applying the CRT provisions that were in place in the 2004 ZO is as follows: CRT is the current
zoning of the Property and the provision directs us to use the “applicable standards and procedures” of
the 2004 ZO. We read “applicable” to mean the applicable provisions of the 2004 ZO based on the current
existing zoning. We reached this conclusion because unlike other Sections of 7.7.1 (such as 7.71.B.3.a)
Section 7.7.1.B.3.c. does not provide “under the development standards and procedures of the property’s
zoning on October 29, 2014.” There is no mention of the Property’s zoning in 7.7.1.B.3.c. and therefore it
was our conclusion that the standards and procedures of the Property’s current zoning (CRT), pursuant to
the provisions of the 2004 ZO would be applicable.

In reviewing your discussion below, it appears you are interpreting “applicable” to mean the standards and
provisions based on what the property was zoned on October 29, 2014. Under that interpretation, the
CRN standards and provisions would apply (the Property was zoned CRN, not C-2 on October 29, 2014).

As noted at the outset, the relevant standards and provisions of the CRN and CRT zone in the 2004 ZO are
identical, so there is no substantive difference if it is determined that this interpretation is applicable.

It is also important to note that Section 7.7.1.B.3.c. refers only to the “applicable standards and
procedures” and does not refer to the Land Uses, which are set forth in a separate division of the 2004 ZO
than the standards and procedures. We mention this given that the CRN Zone does not permit gas
station uses, but this should have no relevance.

Finally, you state that Section 7.7.1.C.5 only applies to LMAs that were approved under the 2004 ZO. | see
nothing in that Section relating to LMAs. Section 7.7.1.C.5 provides as follows: “Without regard to the
limitations of Section 7.7.1.C, a special exception approved under the code in effect on or before October
29, 2014 may be expanded under the applicable standards and procedures of the code in effect on



October 29, 2014.” Can you please clarify this, if necessary.

We look forward to your guidance.

Pat

Patricia A. Harris, Attorney

Lerch, Early & Brewer, Chtd.

7600 Wisconsin Ave | Suite 700 | Bethesda, MD 20814
T301-841-3832 | F 301-347-3756 | Main 301-986-1300
paharris@lerchearly.com | Bio

Subscribe to the Zoned In blog

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
Sent: Tuesday, April 2,2024 11:11 AM

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

Subject: SE 847-B, Burtonsville Wawa

Importance: High

Ms. Harris, upon review of all of the documents filed in the above case, it appears that the Applicant
has misapplied Section 7.7.1.C.1 and 7.7.1.B of the 2014 Zoning Ordinance for the reasons below.

Based on our preliminary review of the application and the grandfathering provisions of the current
Zoning Ordinance, it appears that there are two options for development on the property: (1)
modifying the existing special exception under the standards of the 2004 C-2 Zone and 59-G of the
2004 ZO, or (2) filing for a new conditional use to implement the CRTF Zone. There is also a concern
whether the Applicant waived its rights to proceed under the 2004 Zoning Ordinance when it
voluntarily applied for the CRTF Zone under the current Zoning Ordinance.

According to the file, the property was zoned C-2 prior to October 30, 2014 (the effective date of the
2014 Zoning Ordinance (2014 ZO)). It was rezoned to CRN by SMA after the 2014 ZO was adopted.
It was then rezoned by LMA to the CRTF Zone in 2019 under the 2014 ZO.

The Applicant’s Land Use Report (p. 2) ( cites to Section 7.7.1.C.5 to justify grandfathering the
special exception. That section applies only to LMAs that were approved under the 2004 Zoning
Ordinance (2004 ZO). The LMA approved for this property was approved in 2019 under the 2014
Zoning Ordinance (2014 ZO). That section does not apply.

Your revised Pre-Hearing Statement states that the property is grandfathered under Section 7.7.1.C
of the Zoning Ordinance. Based on that, you argue that the standards of the CRT Zone under the
2004 Z0O apply. Section 7.7.1.C does not support this because it allows modifications only under
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the “standards and procedures of the property’s zoning on October 29, 2014 (the 2004 ZO). The
property’s zoning on that date was C-2.

We have more detailed comments on the case, but wanted to get your response to the above as
soon as possible.

Thanks in advance for your prompt response

Lynn Robeson Hannan

Director

Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearings
100 Maryland Avenue, Room 200

Rockville, MD 20850

(240) 777-6660

For more helpful Cybersecurity Resources, visit:
https://www.montgomerycountymd.gov/cybersecurity


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.montgomerycountymd.gov%2Fcybersecurity&data=05%7C02%7Csara.behanna%40montgomerycountymd.gov%7Ce93de32690e64ebd76e808dc53ed1f42%7C6e01b1f9b1e54073ac97778069a0ad64%7C0%7C0%7C638477525101453796%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rP4GeXkC5MbI73qwgDjdKD27sXQdxIvHE7qzv2RUIqw%3D&reserved=0

	Binder1.pdf
	Page 5

	Exhibit 24 Emails w parties re zoning ordinance and case
	Page 4
	Page3
	Page2
	Page1




